
VILLAGE OF ELM GROVE
13600 Juneau Boulevard
Elm Grove, WI  53122

BUILDING BOARD
Tuesday, April 19, 2016  *  5:30 PM  *  Park View Room

AGENDA

Roll Call

041916 BBmemo.pdf

Review and act on minutes dated April 6, 2016

BB040616dm.pdf

Review and act on a request by Brian and Sherri Kelsey at 1655 Sunset Drive for an 
alteration

1655 Sunset Drive.pdf, 1655 Sunset Drive - Indian Hills Email.pdf

Review and act on a request by Eric and Julie Sullivan at 1040 Woodland Avenue 
for an addition (deck).

1040 Woodland Deck Plans.pdf, 1040 Woodland Survey.pdf

Review and act on a request by Nick and Debby Pfeffer at 14805 Watertown Plank 
Road for an addition.

14805 Watertown Plank .pdf

Review and act on a request by James and Linda Beckley at 1850 Fairfax Drive for 
a new home.

1850 Fairfax.pdf

Review and act on a request by Neal and Mindy Harmelink at 1825 San Fernando 
Drive for a new home.

1825 San Fernando - Plans.pdf, 1825 San Fernando - Survey and Grading.pdf, 
Griffiths-20160331 -1825 San Fernando Drive Revised Residential Re-Develo .pdf

Other Business

Adjournment

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act who 
requires that the meeting or materials for the meeting has to be in an accessible location or format 
must contact the Village Clerk, Mary S. Stredni, at 262 -782-6700 or 13600 Juneau Boulevard by 3:00 PM 
Friday prior to the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate your 
request.

NOTICE:  It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of, other governmental bodies of the 
Village may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information.  No action will be 
taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the governmental body 

specifically referred to in the above notice

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

9.



VILLAGE OF ELM GROVE
13600 Juneau Boulevard
Elm Grove, WI  53122

BUILDING BOARD
Tuesday, April 19, 2016  *  5:30 PM  *  Park View Room

AGENDA

Roll Call

041916 BBmemo.pdf

Review and act on minutes dated April 6, 2016

BB040616dm.pdf

Review and act on a request by Brian and Sherri Kelsey at 1655 Sunset Drive for an 
alteration

1655 Sunset Drive.pdf, 1655 Sunset Drive - Indian Hills Email.pdf

Review and act on a request by Eric and Julie Sullivan at 1040 Woodland Avenue 
for an addition (deck).

1040 Woodland Deck Plans.pdf, 1040 Woodland Survey.pdf

Review and act on a request by Nick and Debby Pfeffer at 14805 Watertown Plank 
Road for an addition.

14805 Watertown Plank .pdf

Review and act on a request by James and Linda Beckley at 1850 Fairfax Drive for 
a new home.

1850 Fairfax.pdf

Review and act on a request by Neal and Mindy Harmelink at 1825 San Fernando 
Drive for a new home.

1825 San Fernando - Plans.pdf, 1825 San Fernando - Survey and Grading.pdf, 
Griffiths-20160331 -1825 San Fernando Drive Revised Residential Re-Develo .pdf

Other Business

Adjournment

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act who 
requires that the meeting or materials for the meeting has to be in an accessible location or format 
must contact the Village Clerk, Mary S. Stredni, at 262 -782-6700 or 13600 Juneau Boulevard by 3:00 PM 
Friday prior to the meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate your 
request.

NOTICE:  It is possible that members of, and possibly a quorum of, other governmental bodies of the 
Village may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information.  No action will be 
taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the governmental body 

specifically referred to in the above notice

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

Documents:

7.

Documents:

8.

9.

http://www.elmgrovewi.org/2439a154-0a4e-4aa4-bf2f-a8234593bed3


1

Village of Elm Grove

Memo
To: Building Board

From:  Casey Griffiths, Zoning & Planning Administrator/ Asst. to the Village Manager

Date: April 15,  2016

Re: Review of Agenda for Tuesday –  April 19, 2016

Item  3.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Brain  and  Sherri  Kelsey  at  1655  Sunset  Drive  for
an alteration. 
Applicants are requesting approval of an alteration. The proposed changes include new shed
dormers, new gable roof, and new shake and board and batten siding. Indian Hills has
reviewed the proposed alteration and approved the changes contingent upon the use of six-
light windows rather than the four light on the dormers and that the siding on the West and
South elevations will match the East and West elevations. Please see the enclosed plans.   

Item  4.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Erick  and  Julie  Sullivan  at  140  Woodland  Avenue
for an addition (deck)
Applicants are requesting approval of a deck to the rear of the home. The deck is proposed to
run from the south edge of the house north to where an existing patio is located. The patio is
proposed to be removed. Please see the enclosed plans.   

Item  5.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Nick  and  Debby  Pfeffer  at  14805  Watertown
Plank Road for an addition. 
The applicants are requesting approval of a garage addition to the east side of the home. The
home owners received approval for a variance to allow for the proposed garage addition into
the east side yard setback. Please see the enclosed plans. 

Item  6.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  James  and  Linda  Beckley  at  1850  Fairfax  Drive
for a new home. 
The approval of the new home’s architecture and design was tabled at the April 6th Building
Board meeting. The applicants have resubmitted revised renderings which incorporate the
suggestions made by the Building Board. Changes include dropping the stone from portions of
the front elevation and wrapping the stone around to the right elevation. Additional windows
were added to the left elevation. Please see the enclosed plans.  

Item  7.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Neal  and  Mindy  Harmelink  at  1825  San  Fernando
Drive for a new home. 
Applicants are requesting review and approval of a new home. Ruekert & Mielke has reviewed 
the proposed project and the Village Engineer’s letter is included with your packet. The 
proposed home meets code height requirements and minimum living area requirements. In 



l Page 2

reviewing the setbacks for the proposed home it was noted that the street yard setback from 
Underwood River Parkway and San Fernando Drive would not meet the average street yard 
setback requirements of the Village Code, as they exceed the 30 ft. maximum deviation. 
However, under §335-88B(2) the Building Board may require setback larger than those 
required. Staff has reviewed the site and based upon the unique shape and orientation of the 
lot and also the siting of the proposed home in relation to the existing home to the west and the
new home under construction to the south that the setback of the home is appropriate. Please 
see the enclosed plans.    



1

DISCLAIMER – THE FOLLOWING ARE DRAFT MINUTES FROM THE BUILDING 
BOARD AND ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE UPON APPROVAL FROM THE 

BUILDING BOARD

BUILDING BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, April 6, 2016

Meeting was called to order at 5:41 p.m. by Mr. Olson.

1. Roll Call.
Present: Mr. Olson, Mr. Matola, Mr. Liechty, Mr. Schoenecker, and Mr. Wollersheim
Absent: Mr. Domaszek, Mr. Janusz, Mr. Riebesehl, and Ms. Steindorf (all excused)
Also Present: Mr. Griffiths, Ms. Nelson, and Applicants

2. Review and act on meeting minutes dated March 15, 2016.
Mr. Liechty stated that in item three, paragraph one, the last sentence should indicate
that the siding will be replaced by the end of 2016. Mr. Liechty also stated that his
name should be removed from those present at the last meeting.  

Mr. Schoenecker stated that in item three, paragraph, one, sentence two, the word
“brining” should be changed to “bringing,” in item four, paragraph one, sentence one,
the word “include” should be changed to “included,” and in item five, paragraph one,
sentence three, the word “as” should be inserted so that it reads “same as on the
existing home.”

Mr. Schoenecker motioned and Mr. Wollersheim seconded to approve the meeting
minutes as amended. Motion carried 5-0.

3.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Marcia  Richards  at  675  Park  Circle  for  an
addition (deck).
Don Whitaker was present before the board.

Mr. Schoenecker asked if milled maple was the color of the deck material. Mr. Whitaker
stated that yes, milled maple is the color and presented samples of the decking
material.

Mr. Liechty motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to approve the plans as
submitted. Motion carried 5-0.



2

4.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Jeff  and  Patricia  Brigman  at  15085  Westover
Road for an alteration.
Jeff Brigman and Ron Klassen were present before the board.

Mr. Brigman stated that the current patio doors are not efficient and do not match the
house. The new material will be aluminum clad wood and will be more consistent with
the rest of the house.

Mr. Liechty asked if the sill will be raised off of floor level.  Mr. Brigman said yes.

Mr. Olson asked about the size of the pane of glass.  Mr. Klassen stated 53” x 90”.

Mr. Wollersheim asked if that was the same rough opening.  Mr. Klassen stated yes.

Mr. Wollersheim motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to approve the plans as
submitted.  Motion carried 5-0.

5.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Eric  and  Julie  Sullivan  at  1040  Woodland
Avenue for an addition (revision).
Eric Sullivan and Tony Catarozoli were present before the board.

Mr. Griffiths briefly went over the letter received from the neighbor who brought the
issue to the attention of Village staff. The neighbor was concerned that there are lights
included on house that were not indicated in the revised plans.

Mr. Liechty asked if the homeowners planned on adding the grids in the windows as
indicated on the plans. Mr. Sullivan stated that yes, they would like to them. Mr.
Catarozoli stated that there was an issue with the supplier of the windows and once that
is resolved they can add the grids.

Mr. Olson asked about the addition of the patio door that was not indicated in original
plans. Mr. Catarozoli stated that it was needed because there was no easy way to exit
the house from the new addition. Before the addition the house was not as long so a
door was not originally needed.

Mr. Sullivan stated that the original survey from 1997 was incorrect and the rear yard
setback is actually more than is shown. Mr. Liechty asked if it would be possible then to
add a deck and still be in compliance.  Mr. Griffiths said yes.

Mr. Liechty asked if the lights that were added are shining away from the house. Mr.
Sullivan stated that the lights are aimed straight down.

Mr. Liechty motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to approve revised plans as
submitted.  Motion carried 5-0.



3

6.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  Jena  DuMont  Black  at  845  Grandview  Drive  for
an addition.
Jena DuMont Black, Ryan Black, and Brian Tom were present before the board.

Mr. Liechty asked if the detail on the south elevation matches the rest of the house. Mr.
Tom said yes, the windows and service door will all have the same detail.

Mr. Liechty asked if the downspouts will continue to run down the driveway and if they
could possibly tie that in with the sump discharge. Mr. Black said that yes, they had
considered tying everything into one pipe.

Mr. Liechty asked if the shutters on the garage will be eliminated. Mr. Tom said yes,
they are getting rid of the shutters.

Mr. Liechty stated that the pitch on the dormers seemed steep. Mr. Tom said that the
reason it is 12/12 is that the ceiling is raised in that part of the house and a drop in pitch
would decrease the ceiling area. He stated that they are also trying to eliminate ice
damming.  

Mr. Liechty asked what material will be used for the new vent on the rear elevation. Mr.
Tom was not sure of the exact material but stated that it might be composite, it will not
be vinyl, and it will be white.  

Mr. Liechty asked if the light fixtures match and if they are decorative. Mr. Tom said yes
and added that they will not shine outwards towards neighbors.  

Mr. Wollersheim asked about the color palette. Mr. Tom stated it will be white on white
on white and that the East elevation has a black roof and everything will be replaced to
match.

Mr. Matola stated a concern that the windows on the right elevation were not consistent
with the front and rear of house. Mr. Wollersheim stated that the front is a bay window
and the side windows are more single openings.

Mr. Liechty asked if the fireplace would be gas and if it would be direct vent. Mr. Tom
stated that this was correct.  

Mr. Wollersheim motioned and Mr. Liechty seconded to approve the plans as submitted.
Motion carried 5-0.



4

7.  Review  and  act  on  a  request  by  James  and  Linda  Beckley  at  1850  Fairfax  Drive
for a new home. 
James Beckley, Linda Beckley, Jean Kwarciany, and David Montguire were present
before the board.

Mr. Griffiths elaborated on the issue regarding which part of the property will be
considered the rear or side yard and stated that the homeowners are presenting two
sets of plans, one with a nine foot exposure and one with four foot exposure.  

Review of Site Plan and Grading

Mr. Wollersheim asked what the thought process was behind positioning the house on 
an angle.  Mr. Beckley stated that their current house is on an angle and that is what 
they prefer.

Mr. Liechty stated concerns that the house is very tall and will not fit in with the 
neighborhood.  He stated that the full exposure would exaggerate the height of the 
home.  Mr. Wollersheim also stated this concern.

Mr. Liechty stated that the homeowners could possibly consider dropping the garage 
into the hill a bit to make the house blend in with the neighborhood.  Mr. Beckley stated 
that there is a two story house to the north and that the existing house is already fairly 
high since the south end was filled in.

Mr. Olson asked what the overall height of the proposed home would be.  Ms. 
Kwarciany said it is 33’ without the exposure.  

Mr. Wollersheim stated that part of his concern regarding the proposed height was the 
right side elevation is very visible to neighbors and could appear to be a large wall.  Ms. 
Beckley stated that they would like to put lannon stone on the right elevation as well but 
they are not sure if they will have the quantity available. 

Mr. Liechty motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to approve the four foot exposure 
grading plan as submitted.  Motion carried 5-0.

Review of Architecture and Design

Ms. Kwarciany presented sample materials and colors.

Mr. Olson asked if the front door will be painted or wood.  Ms. Beckley stated that it will 
be a wood door.

Mr. Matola asked what material will be used for the arches above the windows.  Mr. 
Montguire stated they will be using rectangular cast stone from the existing house.



5

Mr. Liechty asked if the projected cap on the front of garage is sided and if it will be the 
trim color.  Mr. Montguire said that was correct.

Mr. Wollersheim stated that he was concerned that the level of detail on the front 
elevation is not carried through to the right elevation.  

Mr. Matola stated that he was considering the right elevation as a “street view” since it is
highly visible from the street.

Mr. Montguire stated that if they are able to reclaim enough lannon stone from the 
existing home, they could possible wrap the stone around to the right elevation.  Mr. 
Wollersheim suggested that they could lower the level of the stone or reduce the 
amount of stone on the front elevation so that they would be able to have the quantity to
wrap around on the right elevation.

Mr. Olson asked if the homeowners could add a window on the rear elevation where a 
bathroom will be located.  Ms. Beckley stated that they would strongly prefer not to have
a window but could consider adding a transom window.  Ms. Beckley also stated that 
they will add windows on the left elevation where the bedroom is located.  Mr. Olson 
suggested adding two vertical windows to that location and Ms. Beckley agreed.  After 
some discussion it was decided that the rear elevation did not need a window added.

Mr. Liechty asked if there will be lighting in the tower entryway.  Mr. Beckley stated that 
they had not discussed the exact type of lighting that will be used.  Mr. Olson suggested
that they place lights both inside and outside the entryway tower.  

Mr. Wollersheim stated that he would like to see revised plans before making a decision
on the design.

Mr. Liechty motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to table the review of architecture 
and design. Motion carried 5-0.

Review of Landscaping

Mr. Olson asked about the second driveway that goes through the garage.  Mr. Beckley 
stated that since the address is on Fairfax but currently the driveway is on Dunwoody, it 
is very hard to find the house.  Driveways on both streets would make is easier for 
guests to locate the home.

Mr. Liechty stated that all the proposed plantings seem relatively low and asked if there 
will be any large trees.  Mr. Beckley stated that the trees to the South will be large.  Mr. 
Liechty indicated that the height of the trees will help with the height of the house.

Mr. Wollersheim motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to approve landscape plan 
as submitted.  



6

Upon further discussion, Mr. Liechty amended the motion and Mr. Schoenecker 
seconded the amended motion to approve the landscape plans for the four foot 
exposure.  Motion carried 5-0.

8. Other Business
Mr. Griffiths announced that he is leaving the Village of Elm Grove to take a new
position in Sussex and his last day will be April 22.

9. Adjournment
Mr. Liechty motioned and Mr. Schoenecker seconded to adjourn the meeting. Motion
carried 5-0.

Meeting adjourned at 7:07 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Carey Nelson
Administrative Assistant









































































 
W233 N2080 Ridgeview Parkway  Waukesha, WI   53188-1020  Tel.  (262) 542-5733 

 
 

~Elm Grove Village 38-00000 Miscellaneous Project Files > 216 Misc Engineering > Correspondence > 1825 San Fernando Drive > Griffiths-
20160331-1825 San Fernando Drive Revised Residential Re-Development Plan Review.docx~ 

 

March 31, 2016 

 

 

 

Mr. Casey Griffiths 

Zoning and Planning Administrator 

Village of Elm Grove 

13600 Juneau Boulevard 

Elm Grove, WI  53122-0906 

 

  Re: 1825 San Fernando Drive 

 Revised Residential Re-development Plan Review 

 

Dear Mr. Griffiths: 

As requested, we have reviewed the revised residential re-development plan dated March 7, 

2016 for the construction of a new single family home at 1825 San Fernando Drive. This plan was 

submitted to meet the requirements of the Village Code.  Some of the initial comments provided in our 

January 18
th
 letter were not repeated in this letter.  These comments were informational or have been 

addressed or were related only to demolition of the existing structure.  Our findings and 

recommendations for various utility, grading, and restoration elements of the proposed new construction 

are as follows: 

1. The Site Plan drawings need to be revised to include the Certified Survey Map number as 

recorded by Waukesha County. 

 

2. It is our understanding the applicant is working with DNR staff to obtain a Chapter 30 Permit.  

A copy of the permit will need to be provided to the Village when it is obtained. 

 

3. Impervious Area: 

 

The Existing Site Plan shows the impervious area of the property is 5,306 square feet before 

the existing home is demolished (about 4% of the gross parcel area).  The Plat of Survey 

shows 11,381 square feet of impervious area is proposed for the property (about 8.7% of 

gross parcel area).  Despite the increase in impervious area, the revised re-development plan 

will meet impervious area limits required by Village Code. 
 

4. Storm Drainage/Grading: 

 

Existing topography of the property varies, but generally slopes to the east or to the south.  All 

drainage from the property ultimately flows toward Underwood Creek. 

 

The grading plan shows proposed contours with slopes exceeding 3:1 around the new house 

structure.  We recommend vegetated slopes be 4:1 slope or flatter to make initial restoration and 



 

 

 

 

Mr. Casey Griffiths 

Re: 1825 San Fernando Drive – Revised Residential Re-development Plan Review 

March 31, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

 

future maintenance by the home owner easier.  Therefore, we recommend the grading plan be 

revised to provide slopes that are 4:1 or flatter when possible and no slopes exceeding 3:1. 

 

5. House Grade and Setback: 

 

The Proposed Plat of Survey shows the first floor elevation of the new home is 

approximately: 

 1 foot lower than the home that will be demolished. 

 11 feet higher than the edge of the San Fernando Drive pavement at the driveway 

opening. 

 3 feet higher than the first floor elevation of the new neighboring home to the 

south. 

 2 feet higher than the first floor elevation of the neighboring home to the west, 

which fronts Underwood River Parkway. 

 

The elevation of the proposed home appears to be reasonable compared to that of adjacent 

homes. 
 

The Proposed Plat of Survey shows the new home will meet minimum setbacks for RS-1 

zoning.  Section 335-39 of the Village Code also requires the street yard setback for new 

development cannot deviate more than 30 feet from the average of the existing street yard 

setbacks of the abutting structures on each side.  Interpretation of this requirement may vary in 

this case because the proposed house is on a corner lot and the shape of the lots are irregular.  

However, the average street yard setback of the houses on south and west sides of the proposed 

dwelling is approximately 91 feet.  Given the street address of the proposed home, we have 

assumed the street yard setback will be measured from the San Fernando Drive side.  Therefore, 

the street yard setback for the proposed dwelling is 105.9 feet, which meets the requirement 

based upon my interpretation in this case. 

 

If the street yard setback were measured from the Underwood Creek Parkway side it would not 

meet the requirements of Section 335-39 of the Village Code.  However, the proposed house 

appears to be placed in a logical location on the lot.  The Building Board will need to make 

the final decision. 

 

6. Sump Pump:  We recommend the proposed sump pump discharge line be extended to the road 

ditch. 

 

7. Landscaping: 

 

The Demolition Plan shows several trees being removed from the property.  A final landscape 

plan will need to be submitted to the Village at a later date as required by Village Code. 

 



 

 

 

 

Mr. Casey Griffiths 

Re: 1825 San Fernando Drive – Revised Residential Re-development Plan Review 

March 31, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 

 

Based upon the above issues, we recommend the revised Site Plan drawings be revised to 

address item 1 (required) as well as items 4 and 6 (recommended).  Thank you for allowing us to be 

of service to the Village of Elm Grove.  Please contact my office with any questions regarding this 

matter. 

Very truly yours, 

 

RUEKERT & MIELKE, INC. 

 
Anthony D. Petersen, P.E. (WI, IA) 

Senior Project Manager 

apetersen@ruekert-mielke.com 

 

 

 

ADP:crp 

 

cc: David De Angelis, Village of Elm Grove 

 Richard Paul, Jr., Village of Elm Grove 

 File 

mailto:apetersen@ruekert-mielke.com



